
Date Published:26 February 2019     

Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 6 March 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Sophie Benfield

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2019.

Sophie Benfield

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda

Sophie Benfield

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE EMERGENCY SERVICES COLLABORATION 
BOARD (Pages 9 - 12)

To provide the committee with an update on the current work and ongoing 
projects overseen by the Emergency Services Collaboration Board.

Wayne Bowcock

5  MOTION 828: MAKING GLOUCESTERSHIRE'S COUNTRYSIDE SAFE 
AND ACCESSIBLE (Pages 13 - 16)

RESOLVED that this Council notes the exceptional countryside in 
Gloucestershire and the significant economic and cultural benefits that this 
already gives to businesses and residents within the county. 

However, this Council recognises that the county’s countryside could be 

Scott Tompkins



    

made safer and more accessible for people, including walkers, those with 
limited physical movement and equine users. 

This Council also recognises that relatively small infrastructure changes 
could further cement the county’s position as a tourist destination of 
choice for country pursuits. Such improvements could include, but are not 
limited to:

1. Safe connections between walking routes and bridlepaths
2. Gates on walking paths and bridleways that are more accessible 

for all users and easier to open on a horse
3. Well-drained surfaces in gateways 
4. Parking facilities on popular routes 

This Council resolves to send this matter to the Environment and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee, for consideration on how the Council 
and the Local Enterprise Partnership can work with the tourist industry to 
turn Gloucestershire into an centre of excellence for walkers and equine 
users, helping businesses develop new and innovative practices.

6  DIRECTOR'S REPORT, COMMUNITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE (Pages 
17 - 22)

Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure) to update 
the Committee on current issues. 

Colin Chick

7  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 23 - 26)

The Committee to note a report from the Chief Fire Officer, detailing 
information on the portfolio of services provided by the Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service on behalf of Gloucestershire County Council.

Wayne Bowcock

8  WORK PLAN (Pages 27 - 28)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings. (Work plan attached). 

Sophie Benfield

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

22 May 2019
17 July 2019
18 September 2019
26 November 2019

Sophie Benfield

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird (Chairman), Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Keith Rippington, Cllr Stephen Hirst 
and Cllr Eva Ward 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 



    

Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 106 

of the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 16 January 2019 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire 
Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Robert Bird 
(Chairman)
Cllr Dr John Cordwell
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Eva Ward

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Keith Rippington.

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 November were approved and signed by the 
Chair.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

4. ACTIONS 

Updates on actions from 7 November 2018 meeting were noted by the members.

5. LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN 

5.1 James Blockley, Principal Flood Risk Management Officer, presented the 
Local Flood Risk draft Annual Progress and Implementation Plan for 
consideration and comment, highlighting the input of the team in its 
development.

5.2 The Committee was reminded that the Plan updated members on the 
progress of the Local Strategy, where the team are to date and priorities for 
the forthcoming year. 

5.3 Members were advised that the main Flood Alleviation Scheme for the past 
year had been completed at Priors/Oakley in Cheltenham. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

5.4 Members raised concerns of how the flood risk team engaged with the 
district councils and/or the Environment Agency to ensure no developments 
were being approved that would cause a risk of flooding. It was explained 
that even though the enforcement of planning applications is devolved to 
districts, the team meet regularly with district officers to understand/offer 
guidance on key issues and are consultees on planning applications.

5.5 On questioning about the future project priority list, members were informed 
that schemes go through a number of criteria to ascertain their level of 
priority e.g. degree of flood risk, feasibility etc. The number of projects the 
Council can complete per year will vary depending on the nature of the 
scheme and funding available. It was also important to note that the list only 
contained schemes Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) funded/were 
responsible for; there are other schemes that developers, for example, would 
have responsibility for. 

5.6 It was explained that the costs allocated to each scheme going forward were 
realistic but they were only estimates until the point of initiation. It was 
highlighted that GCC have ring-fenced £2.1 million to spend on flood 
schemes annually as a minimum.

5.7 A member wondered how smaller maintenance that can help alleviate flood 
risk was monitored, such as clearing ditches to allow water flow. In response, 
officers advised that regular walks were taken of water courses to identify 
ditches that needed clearing, but they also relied on flood action groups and 
the public to feedback to the Council on areas that needed attention. It was 
highlighted the team are currently looking at how best to encourage public 
engagement on this.

5.8 Members acknowledged that ‘individual property level protection’ (now 
known as Property Flood Resilience (PFR))  is a set of resilience measures 
installed on individual properties such as barriers/flood doors etc. Members 
heard that in the in the next financial year a project is planned to deliver PFR 
for 15 homes, but more may be sought.

5.8 The item was brought to a close with members commending the flood risk 
team for their hard work and support since 2007.

6. HMICFRS INSPECTION 

6.1 Andy Hermiston, Acting Chief Fire Officer introduced the presentation by 
explaining that Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & 
Rescue Services (HMICFRS) are an independent body who are currently 
inspecting fire & rescue services on 3 criteria, which are graded on Ofsted 
levels:

 KLOE 1 – How effective is the FRS at keeping people safe and 
secure from fire and other risks?

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 KLOE 2 – How efficient is the FRS at keeping people safe and 
secure from fire and other risks?

 KLOE 3 – How well does the FRS look after its people?

6.2 It was explained that the service are taking a ‘glass half full’ perspective to 
evidence gathering to challenge themselves in each area. It was highlighted 
that ‘KLOE 3’ was a slightly difference approach due to its subjective nature.

6.3 In preparation for the inspection, members heard that the service have 
appointed a Strategy Leader and Service Liaison to lead. The service was 
broadening out its engagement with other services that have already had 
their inspections for feedback on the process and that staff were being 
regularly updated and engaged with the process.

6.4 Members noted that this inspection was purely on operational process of the 
service and the next inspection will be on governance.

6.5 The Committee were keen that inspectors were made aware of the high 
regard the community holds GFRS. It was advised that the partners’ role in 
this inspection were seen as the public voice as well as previous survey 
responses.

6.6 Members were concerned of possible capacity issues caused by preparing 
for the inspection. They were keen to remind the Acting Chief 
Fire Officer to engage with GCC if capacity issues were to arise, to prevent 
avoidable mistakes in the inspection. Members were reassured that the 
strategic leadership team currently have a close eye on this issue but are 
satisfied the process is currently manageable. It was hoped that a nationwide 
evaluating model would be an outcome of this process for the future.

7. COMMISSIONING DIRECTORS REPORT 

7.1 Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure), updated the 
Committee on current issues. In particular, members noted that:

 Ringway and Amey were in ongoing negotiations regarding staff 
moving over under the new contract; 

 in December Atkins were awarded the professional services contact, 
to commence 1 April 2019;

 the lengthsman scheme was funded by a one off provision. Due to 
importance members placed on this scheme, the highways team are 
currently working out the best way to continue to deliver the work from 
within the term maintenance contract;

 the LED street lighting programme is due to be completed by the end 
of this month;

 GCC are currently analysing data from Phase four of the Cheltenham 
Transport Plan (Trial Boots Corner Closure) and have met with 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Cheltenham Borough to discuss how best to address concerns of 
local businesses;

 a new parking management scheme has been implemented at Arle 
Court to tackle misuse by local long-term parkers;

 there has been a three/fourfold increase on the price of bus contracts 
which is being looked at on how best to manage;

 an announcement on the preferred scheme for the A417 is due in the 
spring; and

 Metzway works are due to be completed by the end of January;

7.2 A member raised an issue on the maintenance of streetlights. He highlighted 
that it is sometimes not clear whether lights in developments are the 
responsibility of the Council or the developer. Officers confirmed highways 
hold a database which they would check first before carrying out any 
maintenance works.  

7.3 Members noted the delay of planned enhancements to GWR and Cross 
Country services, now due to start in May 2019 from December 2018. 
Members welcomed the suggestion by officers to write to GWR, lobbying 
that this date of commencement doesn’t slip any further.

ACTION: SIMON EXCELL

7.4 A member sought clarification on section 2.1.2 of the report. It was 
understood by members that they received £20,000 per year per member for 
highways local, which doesn’t equal £1.58m as a total as stated in the report.

ACTION: COLIN CHICK/SCOTT TOMPKINS

7.5 Several members raised concerns in respect of planning applications. As 
district councils have the devolved power to process applications, GCC as 
the highways authority are able to make comment on issues that may arise if 
approved. Members are becoming increasingly frustrated when they attend 
planning committees to decide on applications and there are no highways 
officers present. They highlighted it is very difficult to question comments 
made if there is no one present to question. Members requested that officers’ 
feedback at the next committee on their criteria for sending an officer to 
planning committee, and to highlight if there are issues with capacity in this 
area.

ACTION: PHILLIP WILLIAMS

7.6 Due to urgent circumstances, the Strategic Adviser had to leave the meeting. 
A member raised a question regarding the timeline for the Javelin Park 
project going forward, specifically when the project will ‘go live’. 

ACTION: COLIN CHICK/DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

7.7 A member stressed there were currently 13 outstanding double yellow line 
orders in Stroud. Officers responded advising that the Traffic Regulation 
Orders (TRO) is a very complicated process. Every time a TRO is made it 
costs £10,000, therefore to improve efficiency – the teams will ‘bundle 
together’ sets of yellow line orders to do in a day. Members were informed 
the Department of Transport is currently looking at how TRO’s can be better 
streamlined for local authorities. Members requested an update on the 
outstanding orders in Stroud and to confirm the criteria for ‘bundling’ TROs.

ACTION: MARK DARLOW-JOY

8. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

8.1 Andy Hermiston, Acting Chief Fire Officer, gave a brief summary of the fire 
services update report – noting particularly the following points:

 56% increase in the number of on-call Firefighters, of which 22% are 
female Firefighters. Gloucestershire is therefore far in excess of the 
national ratio of female staff;

 the implementation of a nationally recognised fitness test for staff;
 the success of the ‘Exercise Star’ call-out exercise in December. 

Members were informed that in the case of an emergency over the 
Christmas period, GFRS would have been fully able to respond; and

 tribute was paid to the hard work of the trading standard on 
prosecutions in the County.

8.2 A member was concerned that having to ‘recruit to replace’ on many senior 
positions within the service would evidently lead to a loss of experience. The 
Acting Chief Fire Officer confirmed that replacing experience in a service of 
this nature is always a battle. Members were assured that there was a 
management structure in place to allow a senior manager to always be 
available to attend a call. Part of the criteria for deciding to attend will always 
be ‘who is attending’ therefore highlighting newer members of staff. New 
recruits are also fully supported with a development plan and scenario 
training.

8.3 The Committee noted the new national fitness tests being implemented and 
questioned what happens if a firefighter fails these tests. Members were 
informed that fitness tests have always existed, but there was inconsistency 
across the country on the process. Officers appreciated this may cause 
unsettling within the service and therefore have taken a ‘soft landing’ 
approach to rolling out the programme. Staff have been assured if they don’t 
reach the required level (but reach above the minimum requirement) they will 
be fully supported with a development plan. 

8.4 A member recommended that GFRS support the ‘Friends Against Scams’ 
national initiative, to which it was confirmed the initiative would link well with 
the services ongoing work against scams. Members acknowledged  work of 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

the skill zones in Gloucestershire in educating young people in cyber 
security, which includes scams.

9. WORK PLAN 

9.1 It was agreed that a report on the Blue Lights Collaboration Board and 
motion 828 from November’s full council: ‘Making Gloucestershire’s 
countryside safe and accessible’ would be scheduled for the March meeting.

9.2 It was agreed that a report on Long-term review of local transport plan would 
be scheduled for the May meeting.

9.3 Members agreed the ‘Soft Flood Alleviation Schemes’ on the work plan had 
been covered in today’s meeting.

9.4 Democratic Services to check whether a topic on the Ernst and Young  
report regarding Javelin Park was under the remit of the Environment 
Committee.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVCIES

9.5 Members requested a copy of the latest Air Pollution and its Impact on Public 
Health report update to be circulated after the meeting for consideration on 
how to take forward.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 13:05

Page 6



Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee – 16th January 2019

Topic Action Responsibility Progress
1 Commissioning 

Director’s Report – 
Planning

To feedback to members the criteria for deciding when highways officers 
attend district planning committees. Members highlighted it is difficult when 
highways comments are made on planning applications and then there is 
no officer at the committee to question. Response to include any capacity 
issues/ strains on the team and if so, any action to improve these.

Phillip Williams Highways Development 
Manager is drafting a 
briefing note for 
circulation to the 
Committee.

2 Commissioning 
Director’s Report – 
Great Western Rail 
Franchise

To write to GWR to lobby re: planned enhancements to GWR and Cross 
Country services. These have already been postponed from December 
2018 until May 2019.

Simon Excell Letter sent to network rail 
12.02.19.

3 Commissioning 
Director’s Report – 
Great Western Rail 
Franchise

To check disparity in figure in 2.1.2 relating to highways local. Members 
are under the impression they receive £20,000 per year per member, 
£20,000 x 53 (number of members) doesn’t equal £1.58m.

Scott Tompkins The figure includes the in 
year funding plus any 
carry over from previous 
years; some schemes 
such as TRO scheme will 
take more than 18 
months to deliver so the 
funding is carried over. 

4 Commissioning 
Director’s Report

To provide a written answer to the Committee on the following question: 
“When does the Javelin Park project ‘go live’? And are there a timeline of 
dates going forward for the project?” Due to urgent circumstances, the 
officer had to leave the meeting early.

Colin Chick Circulated to members 
21.01.2019.

5 Commissioning 
Director’s Report – 
TROs

To feedback to Cllr Ward on progress of double yellow line orders in 
Stroud and to confirm the criteria for ‘bundling’ TROs to Committee.

Mark Darlow-
Joy

Item referred to 
appropriate officer.

6 Work Planning To check whether an agenda item on the Ernst and Young report 
regarding value for money with Javelin Park was under the remit of the 
Environment Committee.

DSU Discussion had at OSMC, 
lead members to decide 
way forward.

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title:
Gloucestershire Emergency Services Collaboration Board 
(GESCB) - Update

Meeting Date: 6th March 2019 

Chairman: Cllr Rob Bird

Presenting Officer: CFO Wayne Bowcock

Purpose of Report: To provide the committee with an update on the current work 
and ongoing projects overseen by the Emergency Services 
Collaboration Board.

Planned Dates Upcoming Emergency Services Collaboration Board - 19th 
March 2019

Background 
documents:

n/a

Appendices n/a

Recommendations For committee members to acknowledge report contents and 
provide feedback to CFO.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2

The GESCB was established between Gloucestershire County Council, Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service and the Police and Crime Commissioner and has had strategic 
oversight of collaboration ever since.

Due to internal processes within South West Ambulance Service Trust (SWAST) their 
early involvement with the group was limited. However, they are now actively engaged 
with the GESCB and exploring how collaboration can achieve benefits and efficiencies to 
support their change programme as well as those of the other services.

Collaboration Projects in Progress

Tri-Service Vehicle Workshops and Shared Fleet Management

Progress for blue light collaboration in this area has at times been challenging, mostly due 
to both services having fleet manager vacancies at different times. In order to combat 
these issues GESCB have commissioned all three lead officers for the respective areas to 
produce a high-level options paper. The first meeting was held in February and the paper 
is due to be presented to the GESCB in March. Nevertheless, opportunities outside that of 
blue light have not been missed as during the last year GFRS workshops have taken on 
responsibility for GCC’s fleet management.

Police and Fire Control Room Collaboration and Co-operation

With the aim of enabling greater integration, resilience and building on strong relationships 
between Police and Fire control rooms. The GESCB commissioned a report into future 
and current collaboration opportunities. The report identified a number of opportunities for 
greater collaboration and co-operation including:

 Joint training
 Supervisory manager’s joint awareness 
 Staff mental health training and support 
 Support of vulnerable people in the communities 
 Shared knowledge of service specialisms

As part of the analysis, senior control staff from Police and Fire consulted with Kent and 
South Wales Police and Fire and Rescue Services as they both currently operate joint 
control rooms. 

Future areas were also identified as potential options requiring further investigation, 
including fall back control, IT solutions when upgraded and multi-agency incident transfer 
solutions. A cross service working group meets regularly to progress all areas.

Page 10



3

Estates Collaboration

In 2016 the One Gloucestershire Estates Group was set up with members from the 
Leadership Gloucestershire organisations to share information about assets; work together 
where possible; and actively seek opportunities to drive better value for money through 
collaboration. All blue light services have representation and thus key influence over 
collaboration outcomes.  

A number of community fire stations are being considered for greater collaboration 
opportunities with all blue light partners, such as Lydney community fire station which has 
been successfully developed into a satellite location for police officers. A business case 
has been submitted to the GESCB looking to develop this collaboration opportunity further. 
The project however, slowed and was suspended for a time whilst both parties came to an 
agreement over a shared vision for the site and future funding.

This area of work has now been re-instigated along with further work to fully understand 
both Police and SWAST requirements in regards to other GFRS sites.

Led by the Police, revenue grant funding to cover professional fees has been secured 
through the One Public Estate for the Cirencester Blue Light Hub. This is closely linked to 
the development of Cirencester Town centre and is wider than blue light collaboration. 

Sharing of Assets/Specialist Equipment

The potential for future savings and efficiencies though the use of asset sharing has been 
identified, leading to a mapping exercise and subsequent service level agreements being 
drafted. Such as shared use of incident group welfare units etc. 

Successful and regular operational Collaboration

• Joint strategic working with Safer Gloucestershire Partnership

• Joint leadership training ILM5

• Exercising through the Local Resilience Forum (LRF)

• Blue light training through the LRF

• Joint specialist operational training

• Shared use of SkillZONE with Police 

• Joint fire investigations involving death, serious injury, significant financial loss

• National Interagency Liaison Officer training

• PCSO access to all fire stations

• A joint approach to wellbeing 

• Joint approach to missing persons utilising GFRS rescue expertise and equipment

• Collaborative approach to road safety education and campaigning

Report End

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: MOTION 828: MAKING GLOUCESTERSHIRE’S 
COUNTRYSIDE SAFE & ACCESSIBLE 

To receive a report on the Motion presented to Council in 
November 2018

Meeting Date: 6 March 2019

Chairman: Councillor Rob Bird

Presenting Officer: Scott Tompkins

Purpose of Report: To outline the current position within Public Rights of Way and 
identify  what  measures might be required to achieve the aims 
of Motion 828

Planned Dates

Background 
documents:

n/a

Appendices n/a

Recommendations To note the report

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



              
                                                                                                                                      
1. Background

1.1 At County Council in November  2018, the following motion was recorded.

Motion 828 – Making Gloucestershire’s countryside safe and 
accessible

Proposed by Cllr Colin Hay
Seconded by Cllr Loraine Patrick

This Council notes the exceptional countryside in Gloucestershire and the 
significant economic and cultural benefits that this already gives to 
businesses and residents within the county.

However, this Council recognises that the county’s countryside could be 
made safer and more accessible for people, including walkers, those with 
limited physical movement and equine users. This Council also 
recognises that relatively small infrastructure changes could further 
cement the county’s position as a tourist destination of choice for country 
pursuits. Such improvements could include, but are not limited to:

1. Safe connections between walking routes and bridlepaths.
2. Gates on walking paths and bridleways that are more accessible for all 

users and easier to open on a horse.
3. Well-drained surfaces in gateways.
4. Parking facilities on popular routes.

This Council resolves to send this matter to the Environment and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee, for consideration on how the Council 
and the Local  Enterprise Partnership can work with the tourist industry to 
turn Gloucestershire into a centre of excellence for walkers and equine 
users, helping businesses develop new and innovative practices.

2. Current Position

2.1 The overarching policy governing Rights of Way is contained in the Rights 
of Way and Countryside Access Improvement Plan (ROWIP) approved by 
full council in March 2011 and forming part of the Local Transport Plan 3.

2.2 There are approximately 3500 miles (5633km) of public rights of way 
within the county comprising:

Public Footpaths 2840 miles (4570 km)
Bridle Ways 533 miles (857 km)
Restricted Byways 132 miles (212 km)
Byways Open to All Traffic 4 miles (6.4 km)

The Rights of Way asset database records over 9000 stiles and almost 
11,000 gates, both of varying designs and condition, across the network.

Page 14



2.3 There is a legacy of poor surfaces on many bridle ways, predominantly 
caused by lack of maintenance of adjacent ditches, legitimate use of the 
routes by farmers/landowners as well as restricted funds to address the 
resultant damage.  Repairs to such routes can be expensive necessitating 
re-creating ditches, excavation of surface and reinstatement using ground 
membrane and significant quantities of stone/recycled materials.

2.4 Seven officers currently undertake predominantly reactive works to 
maintain the network utilising sub-contractors and volunteers as 
appropriate.   These same officers manage the myriad of issues in their 
geographical areas including enforcement actions, working on planning 
applications and maintenance or improvement of the network.  With 
restricted budget the rights of way (ROW) officers are already constantly 
seeking additional funding by working with local equine groups, offering 
25% grants to landowners to replace stiles with gates and seeking 
contributions from councillors Highways Local funds.

Items 1 – 3 of the Motion are part and parcel of the everyday work of the 
ROW Team although it should be noted that stiles and gates are the 
responsibility of the relevant landowners.  GCC has no authority to ‘force’ 
a landowner to install a gate in place of a stile.

3.  Inspections

3.1 Following the principles of the ROWIP, the ROW Team seek to Inspect 
10% of the path network each year.  

4. Funding & Contributions

4.1 Funding for rights of way is predominantly focused on reactive 
maintenance of the network, although there is a small but valuable 
proportion of maintenance work carried out by volunteer groups and the 
team have a focus on providing training and support to such groups to 
develop this capability further.

4.2 Some Councillors have also made contributions from their Highways 
Local funds towards works on rights of way when approached by the local 
ROW officer.

4.3 Another potential source of funding is the Growing Our Communities fund 
where each Councillor has £30k (over 3 years) which they can use to 
prioritise on projects within their area which assist in promoting local 
community cohesion and activity.  Improvements to and maintenance of 
rights of way would be an excellent use of these funds as local 
communities highly value the rights of way in their area as local walking 
and leisure linkages and routes.

5. Summary and Recommendation

5.1 The current revenue budget is sufficient only to manage the reactive 
maintenance requirements of the network.  Similarly the ROW staffing 
levels are already stretched in covering the statutory responsibilities to 
manage and enforce the activities on the current network.

Page 15



5.2 A broad ranging investigation into improving the ROW network along the 
lines of this motion will require investment into staff resources to explore 
and develop wider funding opportunities with the LEP, the health service, 
the tourist industry and beyond.  A relatively small investment by each 
councillor from their Growing our Communities fund, say £3-5k, would 
provide an excellent way to provide some pump priming and could fund 
an officer for 12 months to investigate and develop funding opportunities, 
along with a prioritisation of projects where most benefit could be created.

5.3 It is recommended that the committee encourage each Councillor to 
consider devoting some of their Growing our Communities funds to this 
and that links are established between the LEP and the ROW team to 
explore funding options.

Page 16



Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

6th March 2019

Director’s Report, Communities & Infrastructure (revised format)

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  A new format is being trialled seeking to 
make best use of existing management information and to provide a simple and easier 
read for Members.

1 Decisions
1.1 Relevant decisions by County Council, Cabinet, Cabinet Members and delegated to 

Officers, by date taken:
 Gloucester South West Bypass – Llanthony Road improvements; compulsory 

purchase order and ancillary orders (Cabinet, January)
 Recommendations to Council - Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and 

Council Strategy 2019-20 to 2020-2021 (Cabinet, January)
 Tender and Award of Contract to provide bus service 855 (Northleach) (Lead 

Commissioner: Community Infrastructure, January)
 Provision of Energy Supplies and Services (Jan 2019) (Director: Strategic 

Finance, January)
 Climate Change Government Emissions Reduction Pledge (Cabinet, December)
 Lydney Cycling Improvements – Contract Procurement and Ancillary Orders 

(Cabinet, December)
 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Schemes (Cabinet, December)
 Review of Parking on-street and in County Council owned car parks (Cabinet, 

December)
 Medium Term Financial Strategy – 2019/20 to 2021/22 (Cabinet, December)
 Financial Monitoring Report 2018-19 (Cabinet, December)

1.2 Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Food Waste Collection and Delivery Agreements for Stroud and Cotswold District 

Councils (Cabinet Member - Environment and Planning, between 25 Jan 2019 
and 31 Jan 2019)

 Library Management System (Cabinet Member - Public Protection, Parking and 
Libraries, due between 15 Feb 2019 and 22 Feb 2019)

 Third Party Recycling Credits (Cabinet Member - Environment and Planning, 
between 25 Feb 2019 and 25 Mar 2019)

 Cost Pressures on Subsidised Public Transport Contracts (Cabinet, Mar 2019)
 Adoption of a Waste Tipping Away Policy (Cabinet, Apr 2019)
 Financial Monitoring Report (April 2019) (Cabinet, Apr 2019)
 Revenue and Capital Expenditure Outturn Report 2018/19 (Cabinet, Jun 2019)
 Producing the Council Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 

(Cabinet, Jul 2019)
 Financial Monitoring Report (July 2019) (Cabinet, Jul 2019)
 Financial Monitoring Report (October 2019) (Cabinet, Oct 2019)
 Financial Monitoring Report (Nov 2019) (Cabinet, Nov 2019)
 Financial Monitoring Report (Dec 2019) (Cabinet, Dec 2019)
 Corporate Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy (For Publication and 

Consultation) (Cabinet, Dec 2019)

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1224
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1224
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1219
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1219
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1231
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1227
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1211
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1209
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1208
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1206
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1204
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1203
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27997&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27997&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28070&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28010&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28101&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27713&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27714&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27715&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27716&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27717&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27718&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27719&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27720&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27720&Opt=0


2 Highway and Transport Authority
2.1 Highway Maintenance
2.1.1 Highways Contract

 Mobilisation – Ringway and Atkins are set to take over responsibility for delivery 
of highway services on the 1st April 2019.  Mobilisation activities commenced in 
October.  Ringway met with Amey staff in December and have now completed all 
one-to-one interviews with all staff likely to TUPE transfer to Ringway.  The 
Ringway mobilisation and management team are based in Shire Hall on the 6th 
floor of block 5 and are working closely with County Council officers on a daily 
basis.  Atkins met with Amey staff in early February to prepare for the 
consultancy TUPE transfers.  

 A communications plan is being put in place to share the details of how services 
will be delivered post April and to share key contacts with County Councillors as 
well as local district and parish councillors.

2.1.2 Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
 The TRO committee met on 3rd December 2018 to consider a proposed order for 

a new Zebra Crossing on Cirencester Road, Charlton Kings, which was proposed 
as part of the mitigation works for a new Sainsbury’s store and supported by 
County Council officers on safety grounds.  There were objections from residents 
immediately adjacent to the crossings, who were losing on street parking 
adjacent to their property.  The objections were supported by the local County 
Councillor.  Following the Committee’s consideration the order was rejected.

2.2 Highway Useage
2.2.1 Parking

 Cabinet (December 2018) agreed increases in Pay & Display and Permit charges 
to be introduced from 1st April 2019. These better align with district car park 
charges and ensure that charges still support our Local Transport Plan policy 
objectives.  Officers are developing arrangements for the introduction of the 
revised charges.

2.2.2 Public Transport – Increased costs of re-tendering services
 In MTC1 and MTC 2 the council reviewed its entire subsidised public transport 

network with some services taken on commercially, some redesigned and others 
replaced by community transport. Savings were made by procuring longer term 
contracts, many of which expire in the current financial year and next year.

 Since April 2018 we have seen the cost of like for like tendered services increase 
by an average of over 30%. Officers are examining factors that may be 
contributing to this in order to mitigate the risks to the council and to local 
communities. Factors include contract inflation mechanisms, bus operating 
pressures (e.g. driver retention) and reduced competition in the local bus market. 
To help mitigate this risk Council has agreed £223k of additional funding for bus 
contract inflation in its 2019/20 budget. In March Cabinet will be asked to 
consider this matter and support further measures to manage the residual risk 
should these be considered necessary.

2.2.3 Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs): The Commons and Rights of Way 
(CROW) Committee
 The dedication of a public footpath at Keynes Country Park was challenged by 

the Cotswold Water Park Society (CWPS), and Counsel’s advice was that the 
dedication was unlawful.  The County Council has signed a consent order with 
Wiltshire Council and CWPS to have the dedication quashed.  A meeting is being 

Page 18



arranged between the CWPS, senior County Council officers, County Councillors 
and the Lead Cabinet Member to determine a way forward.

3 Infrastructure and Major Projects
3.1 Major Transport Projects
3.1.1 A417 Missing Link

 It is important that GCC continues its lobbying for the scheme.  Other important 
stakeholders should also be encouraged to support the scheme.  The timing of 
the lobbying activities need to coincide with the various stages of the decision 
making process.

 Highways England will make a formal ‘Preferred Route Announcement’ (PRA) in 
spring 2019. 

 A period of statutory consultation will take place around the PRA in summer 
2019. 

 The announcement for the next Road Investment Strategy (RIS2) will be made 
late 2019.

 County Council officers continue to be engaged with the various working groups 
supporting the technical aspects of the scheme.

3.1.2 A419 Stonehouse to M5 Corridor
 Scheme design has been completed and the project went out to open tender in 

November, for contact award at the start of 2019 and construction start Spring 
2019.

3.1.3 Cheltenham Transport Plan
 Following the first 6 months of consultation and traffic monitoring, officers 

recommended to Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC) that they consider 
agreeing to extend the trial to allow further mitigation measures to be installed to 
improve the acceptability of the scheme.  This includes making Clarence Street 
and Clarence Parade two-way traffic, changes to how the restriction operates 
making it both clearer to drivers but also providing better access for delivery 
drivers, the placement of additional disabled blue badge parking spaces as well 
as minor improvements to signs.  Additionally officers are looking at introducing 
traffic calming measures on Rodney road which will help reduce inappropriate 
traffic and speeds.  

 CBC held a full council meeting on the 21st January to consider the matter.  They 
also debated a 6,000 signature petition to reopen Boots Corner.  The petition was 
rejected and the council gave support to the requested trial extension.  The 
mitigation measures will be introduced in April/May following Gold Cup and the 
consultation period will be extended for a further 6 months.

3.1.4 Cross Keys roundabout
 Detailed design was completed in early December; procurement is due to be 

completed in February 2019, with construction start aimed at April/ May 2019.
3.1.5 Horton Road Level Crossing

 It has been a long held policy ambition to improve rail access from Gloucester. In 
the short-term the focus is to improve the frequency of services accessing Bristol 
through an extension to the Metro-West Phase 2 project  Network Rail has 
recently raised concerns over the need for additional signally work at Gloucester 
station.  They have stated that this issue would need to be resolved to ensure 
operational viability before any additional services could be timetabled.  
Discussions are ongoing with Network Rail to understand how this issue could be 
resolved in the short-term. 

Page 19



3.1.6 Metz Way
 Delivery of this scheme has been delayed, however most of the improvements 

are now complete but there remains some work to be done on the main Metz 
Way junction as well as snagging work which will require some off-peak evening 
work once the main contract is complete. 

3.1.7 M5 Junction 10 – Housing Infrastructure Fund Bid
 The County Council has entered the ‘co-development’ stage with the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to develop the business 
case for the package of transport improvements at M5 Junction 10.  

 The Smart Motorway Project (SMP), which formed part of the original Expression 
of Interest and would have been introduced between Junction 9 to junction 11a, 
is no longer proposed to be part of the overall scheme.  The main reason is that 
the traffic flows are not predicted to be high enough to warrant the scheme up to 
2041.  In addition, the significant cost of SMP does not produce a large enough 
benefit to justify the cost, within the Benefit to Cost Ratio calculation (the BCR).  

 The Council is aiming to submit an Outline Business Case (OBC) to MHCLG on 
5th March 2019. 

 A decision on this highly competitive process will be made by MHCLG in May 
2019.  There is no guarantee that the OBC will be successful. 

 A letter of support is being sought from MPs to raise the profile of the scheme 
with MHCLG.

3.1.8 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Schemes/ Cyber Business Park
 In October 2018, Cabinet approved to transfer the role of scheme promoter for 

the West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Schemes – UK Cyber Business 
Park project from Cheltenham Borough Council to the County Council.  The 
GFirst LEP Board meeting on 4th December 2018 subsequently approved that 
the County Council will be responsible and accountable for the planning and 
delivery of the project and the associated Growth Deal funding. 

 In December 2018, Cabinet approved the proposed portfolio of works associated 
with the £22M Growth Deal 3 allocation for the West Cheltenham Transport 
Improvement Schemes and the development of the Full Business Cases for 
submission to GFirst LEP, subject to future Cabinet approval, if required; and 
approved entering into a funding agreement.  The Outline Business Cases for the 
schemes are now being progressed.

3.1.9 Capital Programme, 2018/19
 Officers are working with Amey to manage spending during the last two months 

of the contract to enable a near balance position.
3.2 Planning
3.2.1 Joint Core Strategy

 Following receipt of the Inspector’s final report, all three of the JCS authorities 
have now adopted the JCS.  The JCS is being reviewed, with an ‘Issues and 
Options’ consultation undertaken between 12th November 2018 and 11th 
January 2019.

3.2.2 Highways Development Management (HDM)
 There remains the ongoing issue of recruiting suitable officers with sufficient 

experience and expertise to fulfil more senior roles within HDM.  It is the intention 
to increase the salary offered for these roles to a comparable market rate when 
compared to other local authorities. 

Page 20



3.3 Waste
3.3.1 Joint Waste Committee

 The current, unaudited recycling rate for 2018/19 is 54.2%; district council 
recycling collection services continue to have a positive impact on recycling 
performance.  

 The target to recycle and compost a minimum of 60% of household waste by 
2020.  It is now highly unlikely that this target will be met, as to do so would 
require significant changes to the collection methods currently used by district 
councils and no such plans are in place. 

 Cheltenham Borough Council has served notice of its intention to leave the 
Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee.  Under the Inter-Authority Agreement 
that governs the partnership, this means that the committee will dissolve in 12 
months time (this will be 13th December 2019).  Discussions are underway with 
the partner authorities to determine what partnership working arrangements are 
required in future.

3.3.2 Residual Waste Project
 The construction is progressing well and is on target.  
 Agreement has been reached on the delivery of waste.
 Minutes of the Community Liaison Group’s meetings can be found here.

4 Community Resilience
4.1 Climate Change Symposium

 Cabinet agreed in December to review the Council’s ambition and the 
effectiveness of its policies in delivering sustainable development in 
Gloucestershire, with a stakeholder workshop to be held with the ambition for 
Gloucestershire to become carbon neutral by 2050.

 To avoid Purdah for district council elections this event will be held on 21st May, 
hosted jointly with Gfirst LEP at the Growth Hub, University of Gloucestershire.  
More information will be provided via Members Matters once the format for the 
event has been finalised.

4.2 Adaptation and Resilience
4.2.1 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)

 Work is now completed at Priors/Oakley, northwest of Cheltenham on a £2.7M 
flood alleviation scheme designed to reduce the risk of flooding to 179 properties. 

5 Community Resources and Partnership Projects
5.1 Gloucester and Sharpness Canal

 The County Council was successfully awarded funding from the European 
Structural Investment Fund and Gloucestershire Environmental Trust to upgrade 
and improve the canal towpath between Gloucester city centre and the Pilot Inn 
at Quedgeley.

5.2 Libraries
5.2.1 Stonehouse Library relocation

 The negotiations with Stonehouse Town Council on relocating the library to the 
Town Hall are ongoing.

Contact Officer
Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure)
colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 21

https://www.ubbgloucestershire.co.uk/community-liaison-group/
mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Title Chief Fire Officer Report
Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Chief Fire Officer 
suite of Services

Fire and Rescue Service, Trading Standards, Coroner Service and Civil 
Protection Team. 

Date of meeting March 2019

Purpose of Report To provide a strategic update on issues and key areas of service provision.    

1. Fire and Rescue

1.1 HMICFRS Inspection Update

The Service received request from HMICFRS for the third set of data, which is due to be 
returned on the 28th February 2019 accompanying the document request for GFRS’s 
inspection. The Service is still waiting for the finalised dates for the full inspection; this 
information is expected within the next two weeks. 

Each of the 14 reports from Tranche 1 have been analysed and used to highlight trends. 
This has been used along with the Service action Plan to develop focus work leading up to 
and after the inspection.  Support for all levels has been obtained from the wider GCC and 
the LGA leading up to the inspection.

The Service has developed a clear communication Strategy for the inspection process which 
has been continuing well, and is developing a multi-layered approach to communicating with 
staff including VLOG’s, face-to-face and newsletters leading up to the inspection.  

1.2 Officer competency assessments 

First call officers are required to operate and be qualified to ‘level 2 incident command’. 
GFRS are developing a simulation suite to immerse staff in a realistic training and 
assessment environment. This will be localised at Cirencester community fire station. The 
Service is working in collaboration with Hereford and Worcestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service to deliver these assessments during the development of the facility at Cirencester.

1.3 Personnel and Organisation Development 

The Service is currently reviewing a policy on competence framework with the intention that 
competence for core skills takes into account National Best Practice. Also, committing 
resource to National Operational Guidance (NOG) to ensure GFRS policies reflect national 
standards.

An internal training course for on-call firefighters was concluded in January 2019. Another 
course is now running at Severn Park for on call firefighters to bolster crew numbers across 
the County. The current establishment head count for on call staff is 251 covering 
community fire stations across Gloucestershire.  This supports GFRS in maintaining 94% 
first appliance availability across its on call stations. 

Recruitment and Retention
Following recruitment for both on-call and fulltime firefighters in previous months has been 
successful so far in order to maintain establishment. Workforce-planning calculations show 
that due to the forecasted savings plan there is a current need to hold vacancies. Wholetime 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



2

establishment operationally should be 132 to maintain effective operational response, 
current projections show this dropping below 120 in the months leading to August 2019 due 
to the retirement profile, resignations and staff known to be transferring to other Services.

The Safer firefighter programme is currently concentrating on compartment searching and 
training has been delivered to all of whole-time crews and are currently 50% of the way 
through retained crews with the aim of completing the training before March 2019.

GFRS is working with GCC Occupational Health to create a critical incident-defusing 
scheme. This is to ensure the mental wellbeing of our staff and reduce the possibility of 
PTSD following incidents.

1.4 Community Safety Team

The Response, Resilience, Prevention and Protection functions are to be combined into the 
GFRS Service Delivery Strategy through the development of a Response and Resilience 
Strategy. 

The rota management system (GARTAN) contract expires in April 2019. Work with GCC 
Procurement, Commercial and Legal Services is well underway to enable a full mini 
competition from the Lancashire Framework in 2019 to award a new long-term contract by 
April 2020.

Retained duty system Fixed term contracts
Due to the potential shortfall in operational staffing across the fulltime stations, early 
discussions with HR have taken place on how best to temporarily fill roles until a decision is 
made on crew levels and savings. A fixed term contract with competent retained staff is an 
agreed approach. Further development and negotiations are required with the representative 
bodies to move this forward. 

2. Civil Protection Team

2.1 Incident Response Update - Water Supply Incident

In light of a number of water supply incidents that appear to be occurring more frequently in 
the county. A meeting was held by the Civil Protection Team with representatives present 
from the District Councils, Thames Water and Severn Trent Water. Valuable discussion took 
place regarding the provision of alternative water supplies and how the water companies and 
local authorities can better work together to enable a more effective response for those 
affected. The Local Resilience Forum Water Distribution Plan is now being updated in light 
of the discussion and any subsequent work.  

3. Trading Standards

3.1 Website Launch

Gloucestershire Trading Standards have launched their new website that is more user 
friendly, which will enable consumers and businesses to find relevant information more 
easily. The website has links to the Gloucestershire Trading Standards Facebook and 
Twitter pages where consumers and businesses can find up to date news and details of 
product recalls.

Page 24



3

3.2 Primary Authority Partnership scheme

Three new businesses in the County have signed up to the Primary Authority Partnership 
scheme bringing the total number to 12. This is a national scheme that allows businesses to 
form a legally recognised partnership with one local authority - the 'Primary Authority' - in 
order to receive tailored support in relation to one or more specific areas of law, for the long 
term. This partnership is resourced by the business and is designed to save them costs 
using a more efficient method of complying with their legal requirements. It provides ‘assured 
advice’, co-ordinating any action considered across all locations, the methods of dealing with 
complaints and developing an inspection or audit plan for the business.

3.3 Prosecutions Update

In December 2018 a shopkeeper was sent to prison for 8 weeks for selling large amounts of 
illegal tobacco through two shops in the centre of Gloucester. One shop subsequently closed 
voluntarily. The other shop continued to sell illegal tobacco. On working with the Police as a 
partner agency, Trading Standards managed to get a closure order against the shop for 3 
months. The premises was the first in Gloucestershire subject to an order for selling illegal 
tobacco.

In January 2019 a farmer was taken to court after officers found that livestock were kept in 
squalid conditions.  Animal carcasses were just left that were open to predication and calves 
were not tagged as per legal requirements. Trading Standards pursued the prosecution due 
to animal welfare issues and the risk to the human feed chain being compromised. The 
farmer was subsequently sentenced to prison for 18 months and suspended for 2 years and 
was disqualified from keeping animal for 10 years. 

Report end

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2018-19

19 September 2018 7 November 2018 16 January 2019 6 March 2019

Quarter 1 2018/19
Performance Report

Quarter 2 2018/19
Performance Report

Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy Annual Improvement Plan – 

to receive a report

Blue light collaboration board – 
update on projects

Cotswold National Park Status – to 
receive an update from dual-hatted 

GEGSC/ECOSC members on 
progress with the scrutiny review of 

the proposal

To receive an update on 
measures to address the 

backlog of applications for 
Modification Orders to the 

Definitive Map from the Cabinet 
Member

HMICFRS – explanation and 
summary of the format of 

inspections and how GFRS are 
preparing for it

Making Gloucestershire’s 
countryside safe and accessible 

(Motion 828)

Trading Standards – to receive a 
report on performance

UBICO – To receive a report on 
their strategy

22 May 2019 17 July 2019 18 September 2019 26 November 2019

Quarter 3 2018/19
Performance Report

Quarter 4 2018/19
Performance Report

 

Long-term review of local transport 
plan

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8



FUTURE ITEMS

1 Lengthsmen Scheme – To consider the 
effectiveness of the Scheme

To be 
considered 
post April 
2019

7 To receive a report from the outreach DMMO 
post holder regarding DMMO application 
demand (to be received 6 months from their 
commencement in role)

To be 
considered 
6 months 
after budget 
2019

2 Footways (in relation to Motion 787: 
Pavements) – to be revisited early 2019

To be 
considered 
post April 
2019

8 Dynamic Purchasing System for Transport 

3 Air Pollution and its Impact on Public Health 
Task Group – To receive an update on progress 
with recommendations – early 2019

Members 
sent update 
report

9 Infrastructure South – including the third river 
crossing

4 Culture of GFRS Task Group – to receive the 
report recommendations – early 2019

10 Advice from Gloucestershire County 
Council (as Lead Local Flood Authority) to 
local planning authorities

5 Biodiversity Task Group – to receive the report 
recommendations – early 2019

11 Infrastructure Planning

6 Cotswold National Park Status – To receive an 
update on the review of the proposal – early 2019

P
age 28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Action table

	4 Gloucestershire Emergency Services Collaboration Board
	5 Motion 828: Making Gloucestershire's countryside safe and accessible
	6 Director's Report, Communities & Infrastructure
	7 Chief Fire Officer Report
	8 Work Plan

